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Question: 

Prior to the Bidders’ Conference, would it be possible to find out if PacMtn is looking 

for a lead agency that serves all five counties, or are you looking to distribute the 

opportunities across the counties served (for example, one agency would serve one 

particular region)? 

 

 

Answer: 

We can certainly answer this question prior to the Bidders’ Conference. It will be 

absolutely necessary for the service provider/providers selected to serve the entire 

PacMtn region. It is possible through this procurement for a single proposal, multiple 

proposals, a single provider, multiple providers, or a consortium of multiple providers 

submitting a single proposal as a group to be selected. Ultimately, through whatever 

proposal(s) are selected, it will be required to demonstrate equitable and reasonable 

service to each county in the PacMtn region. 

 

 

Question: 

Is this RFP a 3-year term? 

 

Answer: 

This Request for Proposals is intended to select a contractor for Program Year 2021-

Program Year 2022 (with Program Years running from July 1-June 30), with the 

opportunity for annual continuation of the contracted relationship for up to 4 total 

program years (including PY21-22 and ending at the conclusion of PY24 on June 30, 

2025.) Contract continuation annually and at any point is contingent on contractor 

performance. However, regardless of performance, PacMtn WIOA contracted services 

are always returned to the community for procurement of new proposals after every 

fourth program year per best practice authorized by our Board of Directors, to ensure 

services remain competitive. In past cycles, contracted relationships with service 

providers have been renewed annually as the primary choice for service provision for 

the following year. 
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Question: 

Are the funds available to several organizations, or is a lump sum split to several 

organizations? 

 

Answer: 

Dependent on the nature of the proposals received, it is possible for a single proposal, 

multiple proposals, or a single proposal submitted by a consortium of multiple 

providers working/submitting together to be selected either for the whole award 

amount or for portions. It will be critical, however, that through whatever proposal or 

combination of proposals is selected, services are provided equitably and seamlessly 

throughout the entire PacMtn region.  

 

Question: 

In order to offer paid internships with students with barriers, would Equus be involved 

to provide payments to the youth or would the organization providing the Wexes pay 

them and get reimbursed per the contract? 

 

Answer: 

Equus is the current provider of WIOA Youth Services for the PacMtn Region. This 

procurement is intended to source the new and/or ongoing provider(s) of WIOA Youth 

Services for PacMtn. Whomever is selected as the WIOA Youth Provider(s) will be 

expected to demonstrate through their proposal how they will provide youth with 

Work Experience (WEX)/On-the-Job Training (OJT)/employment placement, payment 

of subsidized employee wages, provision of supportive service dollars, and 

payment/placement for professional development trainings and certifications. 

 

Question: 

How many youth are you looking for to enhance their lives? 

 

Answer: 

The exact number of Youth expected to be enrolled in the WIOA Title I Youth Program 

for services for PY21-22 is not yet determined. In PY19-20, 180 youth enrollments were 

expected, and in PY20-21, 240 enrollments were expected.  
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Question: 

When will the appendices listed on page 23 be made available on your website? 

 

Answer: 

The appendices listed on RFP pg 23 have been converted to fillable PDFs and are now 

available on the PacMtn website at this link: https://pacmtn.org/wp-

content/uploads/2021/01/2020-PacMtn-RFP-Title-I-Youth-Services-Fillable-

Appendices.pdf , or by navigating to https://pacmtn.org/service-provider-

opportunities/ and selecting the red arrow to access the drop-down menu below the 

“WIOA Title I Youth Services RFP” title. 

 

Question: 

What is the expectation between ISY (In-School Youth)/OSY (Out-of-School Youth) 

split with this award? What is currently being done? 

 

Answer: 

Determining this ratio typically happens with our contractor in a more organic format. 

PacMtn is not a WDC that serves exclusively out-of-school youth (OSY). There is a 

Federal expectation that at least 75% of the budget needs to be spent towards OSY. 

We encourage in-school youth (ISY) to be supported when it makes sense and work 

with our contractor when the need to serve ISY arises.  

 

Question:  

What has been the performance of the current Youth contractor the past three years; 

in addition to the federal performance expectations? 

 

 

Answer: 

In addition to the Federal performance expectations, we negotiate on a yearly basis 

with the Employment Security Department (ESD) on total exits and placements. The 

current federal expectations for performance indicators and reporting for Program 

Year 2020 (PY20) running July 1, 2020- June 30, 2021 are: 

 

https://pacmtn.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/2020-PacMtn-RFP-Title-I-Youth-Services-Fillable-Appendices.pdf
https://pacmtn.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/2020-PacMtn-RFP-Title-I-Youth-Services-Fillable-Appendices.pdf
https://pacmtn.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/2020-PacMtn-RFP-Title-I-Youth-Services-Fillable-Appendices.pdf
https://pacmtn.org/service-provider-opportunities/
https://pacmtn.org/service-provider-opportunities/
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  Indicators  Performance Goals Youth  

1.  Employment Rate 2nd Quarter after Exit  
The percentage of program participants who are unsubsidized 
employment during the second quarter after exit from the program.  

60.3%  

2.  Employment Rate 4th Quarter after Exit  
The percentage of program participants who are in unsubsidized 
employment during the fourth quarter after exit from the program.  

56.6%  

3.  Median Earnings 2nd Quarter after Exit  
The median earnings of program participants who are in unsubsidized 
employment during the second quarter after exit from the program.  

$2,918  

4.  Credential Attainment within Four Quarters after Exit  
The percentage of program participants who attain a recognized 
postsecondary credential, or a secondary school diploma or its 
recognized equivalent, during participant in or within 1 year after exit 
from the program.   

66.3%  

5.  Measurable Skill Gain  
The measurable skill gains indicator measures the percentage of program 
participants who, during the program year, are in an education or 
training program that leads to a recognized post-secondary credential or 
employment and who are achieving progress, defined as documented 
gains in in academic, technical, or occupational skills leading towards a 
credential or employment.  

50%  

 

The current expectations negotiated with ESD regarding Total Served, Total Exits, Total 

Placements, Total ITA, Total WEX, Total OJT), for PY20 are: 

 

 



 
 

WIOA Youth RFP Public Q & A 

Up-to-date as of January 27, 2021 

    

5 
 

Question: (received in advance) 

What do you expect the number of carry-in Youth participants to be? 

 

Answer: 

The anticipated number of participants carried in from the previous program year 

fluctuates each year. This year in particular might have a different number of 

anticipated carry-in participants due to the impacts of COVID-19 on service delivery 

and on WorkSource operations/closure of physical sites. For the past three years, the 

carry-in participant counts have been: 

 

PY18: 198 

PY19: 223 

PY20: 74 

 

Question: 

For MyJOB, does it also cover rehab reentry? (Not only incarceration, but also 

addiction recovery?) 

 

Answer: 

MyJOB is focused on three state juvenile detention facilities in Washington: Naselle, 

Green Hill, and Echo Glen. Although there may be some addiction recovery counseling 

that happens within those facilities, we are not the providers. MyJOB provides 

professional development opportunities, such as trainings and internships, for youth 

who are incarcerated. We want to make sure that when juveniles are released, they 

have wrap around support to continue their professional growth and to ensure they 

are connected to other life-stabilizing services, such as housing, healthcare, etc.. It’s 

going to be important for our youth provider to offer that continued work readiness 

preparation, making sure they receive that connection to WIOA youth programs 

wherever they land so that they can have those opportunities. 

  

Question: 

It is our understanding that in previous years 14-24 year olds were served, and the RFP 

says 16-24.  Has the age range changed this year? 
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Answer: 

The age range has not technically changed this year per the State of WA, though 

PacMtn focus has changed to primarily youth ages 16-24. Washington State technically 

allows youth as young as 14 to be served, but this requires a state waiver that PacMtn 

does not have at this time, so the focus for this RFP/procurement cycle will be 16 and 

above. While infrequent, PacMtn has in past years leveraged other funds (not WIOA 

dollars) to serve youth below 16, for summer internships for example.  

 

Question: 

Does PacMtn fund Work Place Excellence?  Are there any training sponsorships 

available? 

 

Answer: 

Yes. The fundamental pieces of the PacMtn UpLift program, which is specifically 

designed for youth, is based on the Workplace Excellence series. We do provide 

scholarships if necessary, especially for 14- and 15-year old's if they’re not eligible. We 

have in the past and will consider it in the future. 

 

Question:  

Is this contract similar to what GHYW and maybe other organizations have completed 

with ResCare and PacMtn in previous years? 

 

Answer: 

Some organizations interested in bidding on this RFP might have collaborated with 

PacMtn and the previous/current PacMtn Youth Provider on assorted projects in 

previous program years. Often, these special projects are funded through leveraged 

funding streams (Department of Vocational Rehabilitation Pre-ETS funding, for 

example). When we are awarded these funds, PacMtn likes to braid them with our 

WIOA dollars whenever possible. By leveraging funds, we can enroll students into the 

WIOA youth program and also leverage services that provide additional wrap around 

support to bolster whatever services are provided through the special project/alternate 

funding. If you are someone who has partnered with the PacMtn WIOA youth provider 
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in the past on one of these special projects, we can clarify that this RFP is the 

application to be the provider for those WIOA Youth Services. 

  

Question: 

I don't see the 14 elements of service listed or even referred to in the RFP. Are these 

not the same expectations for this service cycle? 

 

Answer: 

They will be the same expectations. Information on the 14 elements of service: 

 

BACKGROUND 

The goal of the WIOA youth system is to assist youth in making a successful transition to 

employment and further education. Programs should be designed using effective practices, 

should be held accountable for success, and should make a clear contribution to the overall 

goal of the WIOA youth system WIOA recognizes that simply providing training is not enough 

to enter a specific occupation. A wide range of activities and services must be available to 

assist youth, especially at-risk youth, in making a successful transition to adulthood. The 14 

WIOA youth program elements provide those activities and services 

 

CONTENT 

The 14 youth program elements are:  

Tutoring, study skills training, and instruction leading to secondary school completion, 

including dropout prevention strategies; 

 Alternative secondary school offerings; 

 Education Concurrent with Workforce Preparation; 

 Labor Market and Employment Information for Local Area; 

 Paid and unpaid work experiences, including internships and job shadowing; 

 Occupational skill training; 

 Financial Literacy; 

 Leadership development opportunities, which may include community service and 

peer-centered activities encouraging responsibility and other positive social behaviors 

during non-school hours; 

 Entrepreneurial Skills; 

 Adult mentoring for the period of participation and a subsequent period, for a total of 

not less than 12 months 
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 Comprehensive guidance and counseling, which may include drug and alcohol 

counseling and referral; 

 Supportive services; and 

 Follow-up services for not less than 12 months after completing participation 

 Activities that prepare Youth to Transition to post-secondary education and training 

 

Staff must ensure the 14 WIOA youth program elements are made available to all youth 

participants. 

 

Question: 

Who are the WIOA contacts for North Pacific County please? 

 

Answer:  

Currently, our provider WIOA Youth Provider is Equus. According to our WIOA Youth 

Project Director, Charlie Bailey, the best contact for Pacific County is Pattie Goedker. 

Per information provided by Matt Sneed, Equus Regional Director, parties are invited 

to reach out directly to Charlie Bailey with questions or to get more information.   

 

Question: 

What would the percentage or expectation of availability at a Workforce location be 

offsite versus onsite? 

 

Answer: 

At this time, PacMtn doesn’t have a specific percentage in mind. Ultimately, it is most 

important that Youth in our region, especially youth with barriers and in remote 

locations are being served, whether on-site at WorkSource, at an alternative location, 

or virtually. The expectation is that service delivery is impactful and accessible, as long 

as the contractor is aware that WorkSource is the brick and mortar; there is an 

obligation for Title I contractors to be part of that system. WorkSource also 

encompasses 29 connection sites across the region. It’s important for the contractor to 

think about how to utilize them in order to provide services to those who need it. We’d 

love to hear about the creative ways you’ve learned how to provide service delivery 

during the pandemic.  
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Question: 

For budgeting purposes, is there a partner share agreement or specific facilities cost 

for staff to work at the centers? 

 

Answer:  

Yes. There is a facilities cost for staff that are on site. We have infrastructure funding 

agreements (IFA) and cost sharing agreements that lay that out. Our affiliate sites are 

based on number of staff on site. For the comprehensive site that is Thurston County, 

there are additional costs for the resource shared space as well. We have uploaded a 

copy of the current IFA to our website, and it can be found at this link: 

https://pacmtn.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/PacMtn-MOU_IFA_Current.pdf, or by 

navigating to https://pacmtn.org/service-provider-opportunities/ and selecting the red 

arrow to access the drop-down menu below the “WIOA Title I Youth Services RFP” title. 

 

Question: 

Due to COVID and lack of opportunity with businesses due to where they’re at, what is 

the threshold for serving youth (in numbers)?  

 

Answer:  

We do set performance targets in the contract. Sometimes they’re met and sometimes 

they’re not for a variety of reasons. We try to stay in contact with contractor 

throughout the term, to determine what the issues are. While there are targets, we try 

to communicate and find out why and what can be done to meet those targets when 

challenges arise.  

 

Question:  

If a paid internship or WEX opportunity were offered virtually, would that count as a 

WEX or internship? 

 

Answer:  

In some cases, virtual WEX opportunities could count. There are certain requirements 

that must be met in order for a WEX to be completed in such a way that meets 

requirements determined by the Employment Security Department and by PacMtn 

https://pacmtn.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/PacMtn-MOU_IFA_Current.pdf
https://pacmtn.org/service-provider-opportunities/
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Policy. Some sort of employer involvement needs to happen, certain obligations need 

to be met (for example – IPP). We may be able to be flexible depending on the 

situation. 

Question: 

Page 10 of the RFP, requests “Five (5) hard copy original proposal signed in blue ink” in 

addition to the electronic submission. Please confirm that one original with signatures 

in blue ink with the remaining four being photocopies of the signed original is 

acceptable. 

 

Answer:  

Each copy does not need an original signature, they may be photocopies of a signed 

original. 

 

Question: 

Instructions on page 10 Proposal Submittal and page 24 Appendix A: Required 

Proposal Checklist, lists items in a different order. Please confirm the desired order of 

proposal submissions. 

 

Answer:  

Please submit items in the order indicated in Appendix A: Required Proposal Checklist 

on RFP pg 24.  

 

Question: 

Additionally pages 10 and 24 imply that the Program Services Work Plan/Timeline and 

Service Delivery Flow are excluded from the page limitations. Please confirm. 

 

Answer:  

The Program Services Work Plan/Timeline and Service Delivery Flow Chart are 

excluded from the page limitations.  
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Question: 

Additionally, Appendix B:5 Budget Form asks for participant cost detail “in the 

narrative.” Please confirm your desired location of the detailed budget narrative in our 

proposal response is immediately following the form itself. 

 

Answer:  

Please provide any budget detail you would like us to understand as part of a budget 

narrative included in the RFP submission immediately following the presentation of the 

budget. 

 

Question: 

Please confirm the audit and cost allocation plan requested on page 20 of the RFP are 

considered requested attachments and therefore are excluded from page limitations. 

 

Answer:  

The audit and cost allocation plan requested are considered requested attachments 

and are excluded from page limitations.  

 

Question: 

May the questions/prompts outlined in Section III of the RFP pages 16-18 be truncated 

and/or a smaller font size in order not to consume the narrative page count?  

 

Answer:  

It is expected that the questions outlined in Section III of the RFP will be addressed in 

your response. If you include the prompts in your proposal for clarity, they may be 

truncated and/or in a smaller font size to reduce impact on page count restrictions, but 

must not be so small as to be illegible. 

 

Question: 

In our narrative response, may tables, charts, graphics, and other illustrations be 

smaller than the 12-point font, if legible? 
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Answer:  

Yes, tables, charts, graphics and other illustrations used in your narrative response may 

be smaller than 12pt font if legible.  

Question: 

Greetings, I'm wondering if when in the RFP for WIOA youth services it says no other 

attachments are allowed that aren't asked for, does that include any letters of support, 

recommendation, or verification of partnerships attached to a proposal? I'm looking at 

previous applications and I see them included.  

 

Answer: 

After review of this question, the PacMtn team has decided that if a bidder so chooses, 

they may include letters of support/recommendation from their own past/present 

contracted partners included with Appendix B:4. These letters are not at all required, 

and no bidder will be disqualified for not including or submitting letters of 

support/recommendation. 

Question: 

Can you provide clarity on what you are looking for in terms of the program services 

work plan / timeline? Are you looking for a ramp time line to services or are you 

looking for a work plan for when a customer is enrolled in program? 
 

Answer: 

Ideally, we are looking for a work plan/timeline that illustrates the bidder’s strategy to 

provide services for Youth, beginning with outreach, and assessment, flowing through 

case-management, individualized career services, and Individual Service Strategy 

development, and ultimately leading to successful placements/outcomes. Include, 

where appropriate, any services leveraged or provided by partners, and anticipated 

timeframe for provision of services, with PacMtn understanding and acknowledging 

the variable nature of the latter.  

 


